UNION EUROPÉENNE DE GYMNASTIQUE EUROPÄISCHE TURNUNION EUROPEAN UNION OF GYMNASTICS



10th Aerobic Gymnastics European Championships for Seniors and Juniors Ancona (ITA) September 22nd to 24th, 2017



Work Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part 1: Officials and Organizing Committee

	1.1	Union Européenne de Gymnastique (UEG)	2
	1.2	Official UEG contact address	2
I	1.3	Host Federation	2
I	1.4	2017 E.C. Local Organizing Committee	3
	1.5	2017 E.C. Local Organizing Committee contact address	3

Part 2: The competition

2.1 Competition Schedule	4
2.2 Competition Format	6
2.3 Team Ranking Juniors and Seniors	6
2.4 Qualifications	7
2.5 Finals	7
2.6 Drawing of lots and starting order	7
2.7 Access to the competition area	7
2.8 Award ceremonies	8
2.9 Apparatus supplier	8
2.10 Scoring and distribution of results	8
2.11 Competition Attire – Publicity	8
2.12 Music	9
2.13 Doping control	9

Part 3: The jury

3.1	Jury Composition	10
3.2	Jury of Appeal	10
3.3	Superior Jury	10
3.4	Judges' instruction and draw of lots	10
3.5	Judges' meetings	11
3.6	Inquires procedure	11
3.7	Tie breaking rule	11

Part 4: The organization of the event

4.1 Competition Venue	12
4.2 Delegations	12
4.3 Accreditation	12
4.4 Orientation meeting	13
4.5 Training information	13
4.6 Opening ceremony	14
4.7 Delegations boxes	14
4.8 Medical services	14
4.9 Farewell party	14
4.10 Hotels	14
4.11 Transportation	15
4.12 Insurance	15
4.13 Visa	15
4.14 Regulations	16

Part 5: Appendix

1.1 Union Européenne de Gymnastique (UEG)

UEG OFFICIALS	
President	Georges GUELZEC
Vice-President (President of the Appeal Jury)	Farid GAYIBOV
Member of the UEG/EC (Member of the Appeal Jury)	Athanasios VASILEIADIS
Director	Lisa WORTHMANN
Head of Media	Tina GERETS
Sports Coordinator	Linda DAVILA
Official Doctor	Jean-Bernard SOLIGNAC

AEROBIC TECHNICAL COMMITTEE	
President	Maria Cristina CASENTINI
Vice-president	Vladislav OSKNER
Secretary	Olga KYSELOVICOVA
Member	Alina DRAGAN
Member	Ignacio MARRON MOYA
Member	Andrea SINKO
Member	Monika WIETHOFF

1.2 Official UEG Contact Address:

UNION EUROPEENNE DE GYMNASTIQUE Avenue de la Gare 12 CH – 1003 Lausanne, SWITZERLAND

Tel.: + 41 – 21 – 613.10.20 E-mail: <u>info@ueg.org</u>

Web-site: www.ueg-gymnastics.com



1.3 Host federation:

ITALIAN GYMNASTIC FEDERATION Palazzo delle Federazioni Viale Tiziano, 70 I—00196 Roma – ITALIA

Tel.: + 39-06-879750 Fax: +39-0687975003

E-mail: info@federginnastica.it Web-site: www.federginnastica.it



1.4 2017 E.C. Local Organizing Committee

Person	Function
Marco CADEDDU	President
Enrico NICOLELLI	Vice-President
Michela BELOGI	Financial Director
Amarylisz WALCZ	Member
Gianmauro MELIS	Member
Gigliola CAROSI	General Event Manager
Luca LONGARINI	Technical Event Manager
David CIARALLI	Press
Michele GIRONELLA	Medical

1.5 2017 E.C. Local Organizing Committee Contact Address

PESARO GYM ASD & ESATOUR SPORT EVENTS

Viale Mameli, 72/c

I—61121 Pesaro – ITALIA Tel.: + 39-0721-404959 Fax: +39-0721-268098

E-mail: info@eurobics2017.com Web-site: www.eurobics2017.com



2.1 Competition Schedule

	Sunday, 17 th of September	
All day	Arrival UEG/AER TC	
,	Meetings UEG/AER TC – OC	
	Monday, 18 th of September	
All day	Optional arrival day for delegations and accreditation, transfer to hotels	
All day	Meeting UEG/AER TC Meetings UEG/AER TC – OC	UEG/AER TC room
	Tuesday, 19th of September	
All day	Official arrival day for delegations and accreditation, transfer	UEG/AER TC room
	to hotels	
14h00-18h00	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room
All day	Training and Podium training by Nations as per schedule	Competition hall
	Wednesday, 20 th of September	
08h00-21h30	Training and Podium Training by nations as per schedule	Training halls
10h00-11h00	Orientation meeting (maximum 4 persons per federation)	Conference Hall at venue
11h30-13h00	Judges briefing and instruction, Chair	Judges room
13h00-14h00	Judges scoring system instruction	Competition hall
15h00-16h30	Judges briefing and instruction, Difficulty	Judges room
14h30-15h30	Rehearsal for the Opening and the Medal Award Ceremony	Competition hall
19h15-20h00	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room
	Thursday, 21 st of September	
09h00-21h00	Training and Podium Training by nations as per schedule	Training halls
09h00-10h00	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room
10h00-11h30	Judges briefing and instruction, Execution	Judges room
11h45-13h15	Judges briefing and instruction, Artistic	Judges room
19h45-20h30	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room
	Friday, 22 nd of September	
09h00-15h15	Training Seniors as per schedule	Training halls
08h00-09h30	Judges briefing, Draw Junior ECH Qualification	Judges room
09h45-10h00	Opening Ceremony – Juniors (compulsory)	Competition hall
10h00-13h00	Junior ECH Qualification (IW/TR)	Competition hall
13h00-14h15	Break	
14h30-17h15	Junior ECH Qualification (IM/MP/GR)	Competition hall
17h30-18h00	Medal Award Ceremony Junior Team Ranking	Competition hall

20h15-21h15	Judges Analyses UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room	
Saturday 23 rd of September			
09h00-10h00	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room	
11h30-12h55	Judges briefing, Draw Seniors ECH Qualification	Judges room	
13h00-13h29	Opening Ceremony – Seniors (compulsory)	Competition hall	
13h30-17h00	Senior ECH Qualification (AS&AD & IW/TR)	Competition hall	
17h00-17h25	Break		
17h30-20h00	Senior ECH Qualification (IM/MP/GR)	Competition hall	
20h15-20h30	Medal Award Ceremony Senior Team Ranking	Competition hall	
20h35-21h30	Judges Analyses UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room	
	Sunday, 24th of September		
08h00-08h25	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room	
08h00-10h00	Training as per schedule	Training hall	
08h30-09h40	Judges briefing, Draw Junior ECH Final	Judges room	
09h45-09h55	European Championship Junior Finals	Commotition hall	
091145-091155	Presentation of the Nations	Competition hall	
10h00-10h50	European Championship Junior Finals IW & IM	Competition hall	
10h55-11h10	Medal Award Ceremony Junior Finals IW & IM	Competition hall	
11h15-12h30	European Championship Junior Finals MP & TR & GR	Competition hall	
12h35-13h00	Medal Award Ceremony Junior Finals MP& TR & GR	Competition hall	
13h45-14h45	Judges briefing, Draw Senior ECH Final	Judges room	
15h00-15h15	European Championship Senior Finals	Competition hall	
131100-131113	Presentation of the Nations	Competition nair	
15h15-16h40	European Championship Senior Finals AS & AD &IW & IM	Competition hall	
16h45-17h10	Medal Award Ceremony Senior Finals AS & AD & IW & IM	Competition hall	
17h15-18h30	European Championship Senior Finals MP & TR & GR	Competition hall	
18h35-19h00	Medal Award Ceremony Senior Finals MP & TR & GR	Competition hall	
19h00-19h45	Meeting UEG/AER TC	UEG/AER TC room	
20h00	Farewell Party		
Monday, 25 th of September			
All day	Departure of participants and the UEG/AER TC		

2.2 Competition format

1st day, Friday, September 22th

Junior ECh Qualification (IW/TR)
Junior ECh Qualification (IM/MP/GR)
Junior ECh Team Ranking

The maximum number for the Qualifying Round is:

- two per category and federation for IM, IW, MP, TR, GR

.....

2nd day, Saturday, September 23rd

Senior ECh Qualification (AS/AD/IW/TR) Senior ECh Qualification (IM/MP/GR) Senior ECh Team Ranking

The maximum number for the Qualifying Round is:

- two per category and federation for IM, IW, MP, TR, GR, AS, AD

3rd day, Sunday, September 24th

European Championship Junior Finals European Championship Senior Finals

The top eight of IW, IM, MP, TR, GR may participate in the finals (maximum 2 per federation for IW, IM, MP, TR; maximum 1 per federation for GR)

The top 6 of AD may participate in the finals (maximum 1 per federation) The top 6 of AS may participate in the finals (maximum 1 per federation)

2.3 Team Ranking Juniors and Seniors

To participate in the Team Ranking, federations must participate with at least one participant in the qualifications of the following categories: Individual Men and/or Individual Women, Mixed Pair, Trio, Group.

The team ranking list will be established by adding the 4 best rankings obtained during the qualifications in the following categories: Individual Men or Individual Women, Mixed Pair, Trio, Group.

The NF with the lowest number of points is declared Team European Champion.

Tie breaking rules for the team ranking:

In case of a tie in points at any place in the Team Ranking, the ranking will be determined by the following criteria:

- 1. the best ranked Group
- 2. the best ranked Trio

If there is still a tie, the tie will not be broken.

2.4 Qualifications

- The starting order of the competition is made according to the draw of lots carried out in Cesenatico, on the 3th of July 2017, by the official representatives of the UEG (Appendix A).
- If a National Federation reduces the number of participating gymnasts after the definitive inscriptions, the UEG/AER TC has the right to adjust the starting order in order to ensure the best possible running of the competition.
- In case of a tie at any position at the end of the qualification see FIG TR. Sec. 6 − 3.3

2.5 Finals

- The final will take place on Sunday, September 24th as follows:
 - European Championship Junior Finals, from 10h00 to 12h30
 - European Championship Senior Finals, from 15h15 to 18h30.

2.6 Drawing of lots and starting order

The drawing of lots for **the starting order of the qualifications** took place in Cesenatico, 3rd of July 2017. Please note that the order indicated on the nominative entry form will determine the place of the competitor(s) and the number of the draw (starting list). No changes will be allowed.

The order of all categories for **JUNIOR** competitions in the qualifications will be:

- 1st part IW / TR
- 2nd part IM / MP / GR

The starting order of the final is made according to the draw of lots carried out in Cesenatico, 3rd of July 2017, by the official representatives of the UEG (Appendix B).

- The top eight of all categories will qualify for the finals.
- In case of a tie at any position at the end of the qualification see FIG TR. Sec. 6 3.3

The order of all categories for competitions in the finals will be:

• IW, IM, MP, TR, GR

The list of the finalists, with two reserves, will be handed over to the head of delegation after each qualification.

The order of all categories for **SENIOR** competitions in the qualifications will be:

- 1st part AS/ AD/ IW / TR
- 2nd part IM / MP / GR

The starting order of the final is made according to the draw of lots carried out in Cesenatico, on the 3rd of July 2017, by the official representatives of the UEG (Appendix B).

- The top eight of IW, IM, MP, TR, GR categories will qualify for the final.
- The top 6 of AD category will qualify for the finals.
- The top 6 of AS category will qualify for the finals.
- In case of a tie at any position at the end of the qualification see FIG TR. Sec. 6 − 3.3

The order of all categories for competitions in the finals will be:

• AS, AD, IW, IM, MP, TR, GR

2.7 Access to the competition area

• The competition area is accessible to members of the various juries, competing gymnasts and their accredited coaches, to local group leaders, to the auxiliary personnel of the Jury, to the President of the

UEG Medical Commission, to the official doctor, to the team doctors, medical staff and to persons concerned with the apparatus. A team medical person is permitted to accompany the gymnasts and coaches during all Competitions.

- Interpreters may not enter the competition area without the permission of the President of the UEG AER TC.
- The competition area is strictly forbidden to all other persons.
- The use of mobile phones or any other electronic communication device by gymnasts, coaches, judges or medical staff of the delegations on the field of play is forbidden during the entire duration of the competitions of official UEG competitions. If this rule is violated, the concerned persons will receive a written warning. If this behaviour is repeated after the written warning is issued, the concerned person will be excluded for the rest of the competition. The Superior Jury is responsible to decide these disciplinary measures. Appeals against these decisions have to be submitted to the Jury of Appeal whose decision is final.

2.8 Award ceremonies

The ceremonies in the competition venue will take place as follows:

- For Junior ECH Team ranking, Friday, 22nd September, at 17h30;18h00
- For Senior ECH Team ranking, Saturday, 23rd September, at 20h15; 20h30
- For Junior ECH IW and IM, Sunday, 24nd September, at 10h55;11h10
- For Junior ECH MP, TR and GR, Sunday, 24nd September, at 12h35;13h00
- For Senior ECH AS, AD, IW and IM, Sunday, 24nd September, at 16h45;17h10
- For Senior ECH MP, TR and GR, Sunday, 24nd September, at 18h35;19h00

2.9 Apparatus supplier

Floors:

The competition podium and training hall have FIG official floors from Jansen-Fritsen (reference 1790560).

Steps:

We remind all participating delegations that all Aerobic Steps used at the ECH must strictly adhere to the FIG Apparatus Norms, Part II, Aerobic Step, Page 79 and 80, valid as per 1.1.2015 (attached), published 21st January 2015 as decided by the FIG Apparatus Commission 9th July 2014 and the Executive Committee 28th October 2014 and mentioned in the Minutes of the AER TC Meeting 1-6 October 2014 and published in the FIG Bulletin Nr. 231, December 2014, pages 140- 143.

UEG will provide 24 Steps VENTURELLI which adhere to the FIG Apparatus Norms and may be used by the delegations who do not wish to bring their own Steps.

The Steps will be available in the Training and Competition halls.

2.10 Scoring and distribution of results

At the end of the competitions, all delegation will be provided with a complete set of results.

At the end of the European Championships, all delegation will be provided with a complete set of results including the judges' individual scores for all competitions.

2.11 Competition Attire Publicity

Any advertisement displayed on leotard must be approved at the orientation meeting (according to the UEG rules of publicity).

2.12 Music

In order to simplify the management of the music and to limit the technical problems of wiring for sound during the competitions, the Organizing Committee wishes to reduce the variety of the various musical supports (CD, USB stick) and to use only the numerical support.

Each music will be classified and indexed in a file on the computers of the organisers by respecting the flow schedule in order to be able to use them guickly and effectively.

All the music used during the 10th Aerobics Gymnastics European Championships must be submitted online until 11th September 2017 (details to be provided by the OC).

Each delegation, logging in with its credentials at http://eurobics2017.sportcare.tech/, has to submit the Music files (National Anthem included) on Nesea SportCARE Platform. for each individual, mixed pair, trio and group performance.

MUSICS have to be uploaded in the following format:

File format: .mp3

Name of file must contain:

- The name of the nation (official abbreviation of the country):
- The first and last name of the individual competitor/s and the last name of MP, TR, GR AD, AS;
- The category (IM, IW, MP, TR, GR, AS, AD);
- The Junior or Senior (Example: ROU RADU Alina Junior IW2.mp3)

NATIONAL ANTHEM has to be uploaded in the following format:

File format: .mp3

Name: Official abbreviation of the country + Anthem (Example ROU_Anthem)

If you need help, you can write to the following e-mail address: helpdesk.eurobics@nesea.it

Uploading the music on the SportCARE Platform, each delegation confirms that the pieces of music chosen are not forbidden to be played, including during a sports event, and authorizes the LOC to use them during the competition.



If the music files are not uploaded by the delegations in the prescribed terms or are uploaded in an unofficial format, and have to be uploaded on site, there will be a charge of **Euro 15**.

At the accreditation, the Heads of delegation have to hand in the Music Release form (App. D)

2.13 Doping control

Any doping is prohibited. A doping control can be requested at any time, in accordance with the FIG/UEG regulations. Doping controls will be carried out in accordance with the WADA regulations.

3.1 Jury composition

Jury A (Individual Men/Individual Women)

Chair of iudges fixed by draw 2 difficulty judges fixed by draw 4 artistic judges fixed by draw 4 execution judges fixed by draw 2 line judge fixed by draw 1 time judge fixed by draw 1 artistic reserve judge fixed by draw 1 execution reserve judge fixed by draw

Jury B (Mixed Pair/Trio/Group/Aerobic Dance/ Aerobic Step)

Chair of judges	fixed by draw
2 difficulty judges	fixed by draw
4 artistic judges	fixed by draw
4 execution judges	fixed by draw
2 line judge	fixed by draw
1 time judge	fixed by draw
1 artistic reserve judge	fixed by draw
1 execution reserve judge	fixed by draw

3.2 Jury of Appeal

Vice-president of the UEG Farid GAYIBOV

Member of the UEG/EC Athanasios VASILEIADIS

Member of the OC Walter PERONI

3.3 Superior Jury

UEG AER TC President Maria Cristina CASENTINI
UEG AER TC Vice-president Vladislav OSKNER

UEG AER TC Member Alina DRAGAN

UEG AER TC Member Ignacio MARRON MOYA

UEG AER TC Member Andrea SINKO
UEG AER TC Member Monika WIETHOFF
JUDGE Lefki FERENTINOU

3.4 Judges' instruction and draw of lots

All judges have to participate in the briefing sessions as described in the Competition Schedule. Short judges' briefings will take place before each competition.

- According to the FIG/TR, the presence of the judges to the judges' instruction is mandatory. The judges' instruction will be held in English.
- The judges' oath will be carried out at the end of the judges' instruction, by one of the host federation judge.

3.5 Judges' meetings

According to the Competition Schedule:

Wednesday, 20th September

11h30-13h00	Judges Briefing and Instructions, Chair
13h00-14h00	Judges Scoring System Instruction
15h00-16h30	Judges Briefing and Instructions, Difficulty

Thursday, 21st September

10h00-11h30	Judges Briefing and Instructions, Execution
11h45-13h15	Judges Briefing and Instructions, Artistic

Friday, 22nd September

08h00-09h30 Judges Briefing and the draw for Junior ECh Qualification

Saturday, 23rd September

11h30-12h55 Judges Briefing and the draw for Senior ECh Qualification

Sunday, 24th September

08h30-09h40	Judges Briefing and the draw for Junior ECh Finals
13h45-14h45	Judges Briefing and the draw for Senior ECh Finals

3.6 Inquiries procedure

Inquiries for the difficulty scores will be allowed, provided that they will be made verbally immediately after the publication of the score or at the very latest before the end of the exercise of the following gymnast. For the last gymnast of a rotation, this limit is one minute after the score is shown on the scoreboard. The person designated to receive the verbal inquiry will have to note the time of receiving it and this will start the procedure. Only the accredited coaches in the competition area will be entitled to submit an inquiry. Late verbal inquiries will be rejected. A federation will not be allowed to complain against a gymnast from another federation. The inquiry will have to be confirmed as soon as possible in writing, but within 4 minutes at the latest after the verbal inquiry and will require an agreement of payment of EUR 300.— for the first complaint, EUR 500.— for the second complaint and EUR 1'000.— for the third complaint. Should the inquiry not be confirmed in writing within 4 minutes, then the procedure will become obsolete.

Every inquiry will be examined by the Superior Jury and a final decision, which may not be appealed, will be taken at the very latest:

- At the end of the rotation for the qualifying competitions, the all around competitions and the team competition (final).
- Before the score of the following gymnast is shown for the finals.

The detailed procedure see FIG TR Art. 8.4

3.7 Tie breaking rule

- In case of a tie at any position at the end of the qualification see FIG TR. Sec. 6 − 3.3
- In case of a tie at any position at the end of finals see FIG TR. Sec. 6 3.3

4.1 Competition Venue

PALAPROMETEO ESTRA "L. ROSSINI" Località Passo Varano 60121 ANCONA

4.2 **Delegations**

Maximum:

Delegation members	Seniors	Juniors 15 - 17 years
Head of delegation	1	1
Team leader	1	1
Doctor & Masseur/Physiotherapist	2	2
Coaches	2	2
Judges with FIG brevet	2	2
Individual male gymnasts	2	2
Individual female gymnast	2	2
Mixed pairs	2	2
Trios	2	2
Groups (composed of 5 gymnasts)	2	2
Aerobic Step (composed of 8 gymnasts)	2	-
Aerobic Dance (composed of 8 gymnasts)	2	-

Seats will be reserved for each participating delegation.

4.3 Accreditation

The accreditation will take place at the Accreditation Centre of PalaPrometeo Estra upon arrival to Ancona. Accreditation permits the identification of all participants and indicates the access to certain zones. Access to all zones will be controlled. Accreditation must be visibly worn throughout the whole event. During the accreditation the Heads of Delegation have to verify the identity of the members of their delegation as well as all requirements regarding accommodation, meals and registrations. They have to make the necessary payments (including insurance).

In order to organise the accreditation, each National Federation has to send the Nominative Registration directly to UEG in order to confirm the number of participants from the 22nd of June 2017 on (end of Definitive Registration). Afterwards, all the data communicated to UEG will be uploaded on NESEA SportCARE Digital Platform (http://eurobics2017.sportcare.tech), technical partner of the event, and each Federation, with its login credentials, will be able to upload photos (as with music and anthem) for each participant.

<u>Deadline for the content uploading process is 11th of September 2017 (12:00 GMT time).</u>

If you need help, you can write to the following e-mail address: helpdesk.eurobics@nesea.it

PHOTO has to be uploaded in the following format:

File format: .jpg

Size: 1500x1500 pixels (necessary picture dimension for a correct displaying on the screens)

Background: white or light blue is preferable, without shadow

Name of file: SURNAME_Name.jpg

All the photos will be used both for printing of personal badge and for displaying on the screens during the competitions.

Clicking on "NOMINATIVE REGISTRATION" button of the online Platform, each delegation will see all the participants registered for the event (as communicated to UEG in the Nominative Registration) and <u>will be able</u> to print the personal vouchers, that have to be shown at the accreditation centre to collect the badges.

The accreditation is personal, non-transferable and necessary for access to the training and competition halls, as well as for official transports. The FIG and UEG Directives and Technical Regulations will be strictly applied, especially with regard to the number of persons accredited per nation.

Accreditations are provided to each delegation having fulfilled their financial obligations.

Delegations who did not respect this directive will have to wait at the accreditation center.



If the photo has to be taken on site because none has been sent within the deadline or sent in an unofficial format or insufficiant quality, there will be a charge of **Euro 15** for each photo taken at the accreditation desk. The accreditation sent without pictures will not be handled with priority. You may wait at the accreditation desk.

- Upon accreditation the Head of Delegation or his representative will have to provide to the organizing committee the following:
 - The passport of gymnasts and judges;
 - The licenses of the gymnasts;
 - The medical insurance for the members of the delegation if not already provided (except gymnasts and judges)
 - Prove that they fulfilled their financial obligation to the O.C.
 - The form "Confirmation of the national flag and anthem" together with the national flag of their country (dimension of 100/200 cm) and the national anthem uploaded on platform (clearly marked with the name of the country and the mention "national anthem")
 - The copy of the Medical Certificate/Diploma for medical personnel. UEG will collect and record these certificates. Please note that without this document, the accreditation of the medical personnel will NOT be released.
- For the accreditation process, only the Head of Delegation (or his representative) is requested to present him/her self at the accreditation centre.

4.4 Orientation Meeting

This orientation meeting for all delegations will take place on Wednesday, September 20th, 2017, 10h00 – 11h00 in the Conference Hall at the competition venue. The Heads of Delegation and Coaches have to participate in this briefing session, during which the UEG AER TC and the OC will give information about the running of the championships. An updated work plan will be distributed to the Heads of delegation during the orientation meeting.

This orientation meeting will be held in English only.

Unjustified failure to attend will result in a sanction against the federation of Euro 1.000.

4.5 Training information

The training will start on Wednesday, September 20th and will take place in the training halls and competition hall.

A detailed timetable for the warm-up will be handed out to the Heads of delegation upon arrival.

The timetable of the training and the warm-up of the finalists will be given to the Heads of delegation on Saturday evening 23rd September 2017 for Juniors and Seniors.

The access to the competition hall, the training and the warm-up halls will only be granted to those delegations wearing the accreditation card and only during the times reserved for their nation.

4.6 Opening ceremony

The Official Opening Ceremony will be held on the 22th of September for Juniors in the Competition hall at 09h45. The Official Opening Ceremony will be held on the 23rd of September for Seniors in the Competition hall at 13h00. The ceremony will consist of a flag presentation by nation with the competitors by nation performing 2 x 8 counts with aerobic music. The rehearsal will be held on September 20th in the Competition Hall on the Podium at 14h30 to 15h30. All Heads of Delegation & Coaches must be present during the Rehearsal of the Opening Ceremony. All competitors must wear their national tracksuit.

4.7 Delegation boxes

- Delegation Mail Boxes will be set up in the competition hall. All information regarding competition, warm-up, trainings, and notification of meetings, transport, official functions, as well as UEG and OC correspondences will be distributed via the delegation mailboxes.
- A special "Mail Box" authority card will be issued to each Head of Delegation. This card must be shown by the Head of Delegation (or his representative) when collecting all information and results from their Delegation Mail Box. The delegation member designated to collect the information from the Delegation Mail Box will be required to sign for information collected.

4.8 Medical Services

The OC will provide the necessary medical services.

4.9 Farewell Party

The closing evening will be organised on Sunday night at the competition venue at 9.00 pm. Accreditation will be asked for access.

Extra tickets: for those not registered to the Official Eurobics 2017 package provided by the Organising Committee: Eur 35,00 per person. Tickets can be purchased at the Accreditation Centre.

4.10 Hotels

The contact person for all logistical questions is Michela Cinotti.

E-mail: events@esatoursportevents.com

Official UEG Hotel:

GHotel –
 Via Sbrozzola, 26 - 60027 Osimo,

Other Hotels:

- Klass Hotel –
 SS 16 km 317 Castelfidardo
- Hotel Parco –
 Via Donizetti 2, 60022 Castelfidardo
- GHotel –
 Via Sbrozzola, 26 60027 Osimo,
- Hotel Touring –
 Via degli Spagnoli 18 60015 Falconara Marittima
- HP Conero Palace –
 Via Grandi 66027 Osimo
- Hotel Concorde –
 Via Aspio Terme, 191- 60021 Camerano

4.11 Transportation

The OC will organise transport for the delegations from the official hotels to the competition venue. The transport schedules between competition hall and the official hotels will be available upon arrival of the delegations at the accreditation office.

Transport service from Ancona Airport and from Ancona Train station will be provided by the Organising Committee to delegations which booked their accommodation through the Organising Committee and return their travel information form by August 16, 2017 at the latest.

Only accredited persons are entitled to use the transportation system.

Federations who did not book their accommodation through the Organizing Committee will not be entitled to use the transportation system and will be responsible for being on time at all events.

4.12 Insurance

The FIG and UEG Technical Regulations stipulate that all participating federations have to assume all costs in relation to the medical insurance (illness and accidents) of all delegation members. The Organising Committee has the right to verify the validity of the insurance upon arrival of the delegations (policy insurance, original or copy).

Entering the European Championships without valid medical insurance of all delegation members will be rejected. However, those who cannot present valid medical insurance, will have the possibility to conclude a medical insurance service provided by the OC at the following cost:

35€ per person/day for illness and medical fee.

4.13 Visa

Please check whether you need a visa to enter Italy. The Italian Gymnastic Federation will assist you applying for a visa with pleasure. To assist with the application process, each country should complete the visa request form. This form has to be sent back to the Italian Gymnastic Federation within July 16, 2017 at the latest.

4.14 Regulations

The 10th European Junior and Senior Aerobic Gymnastics Championships, ANCONA (ITA) 2017, will take place under the following regulations;

- FIG and UEG Statutes
- FIG and UEG Technical Regulations
- FIG Code of Points and following remarks or documents issued by FIG/AER TC
- FIG General Judges' Rules
- FIG Specific Judges' Rules
- Doping Control Rules
- UEG Medical Guidlines
- FIG License Rules
- UEG Media Rules
- UEG Accreditation Directives
- FIG Apparatus Norms
- UEG Advertising and Publicity Rules
- FIG Rules for Sanctioning (approval) of International Events
- and subsequent decisions of the UEG Executive Committee

EUROPEAN UNION OF GYMNASTICS Maria Cristina Casentini UEG AER TC President

Bratislava, 19/06/2017



10th AEROBIC GYMNASTICS EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIPS JUNIORS (15 - 17)

Friday, September 22nd, 2017

QUALIFICATIONS DRAW - Cesenatico (ITA), 3rd July, 2017

#	IM
1	ESP1
2	ITA1
3	RUS1
4	ROU1
5	TUR1
6	POR1
7	RUS2
8	POR2
9	ROU2
10	UKR1
11	FRA
12	BLR
13	TUR2
14	ESP2
15	ITA2

#	IW
1	TUR1 ROU1
2	ROU1
3	LTU1
4	LTU1 RUS1
5	GRE1
6	UKR1
7	FRA1
8	AUT1
9	CZE1
10	FIN1
11	ESP1
12	ITA1
13	POR1
14	GER1
15	GBR1
16	HUN1
17	LTU2
18	ESP2
19	FRA2
20	SVK
21	ISR
22	RUS2
23	FIN2
24	AUT2
25	TUR2
26	UKR2
27	GBR2
28	ITA2
29	CZE2
30	POR2
31	GER2
32	ROU2
33	HUN2
34	GRE2

#	MP
1	ITA1
2	RUS1
3	ROU1
4	ROU2
5	UKR
6	ESP
7	TUR
8	FRA
9	RUS2
10	ITA2

#	TR
1	POR1
2	ROU1
3	RUS1
4	UKR1
5	ESP1
6	FIN1
7	FRA1
8	HUN1
9	ITA1
10	CZE1
11	GER1
12	ROU2
13	UKR2
14	TUR FIN2
15	FIN2
16	FRA2
17	GRE
18	SVK AUT
19	AUT
20	GER2
21	ESP2 LTU
22	LTU
23	POR2
24	RUS2
25	HUN2
26	CZE2 ITA2
27	ITA2
28	GBR

#	GR
1	HUN1
3	UKR1
	GER1
4	ITA1
5	RUS1
6	ITA2
7	FIN
8	CZE
9	ESP
10	RUS2
11	ROU
12	POR
13	UKR2
14	FRA
15	HUN2
16	GRE
17	GER2

10th AEROBIC GYMNASTICS EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIPS SENIORS

Saturday, September 23rd, 2017

QUALIFICATIONS DRAW - Cesenatico (ITA), 3rd July, 2017

#	IM
1	FRA1
2	HUN1
3	ROU1
4	ITA1
5	RUS1
6	BUL1
7	ESP1
8	UKR1
9	AZE
10	RUS2
11	TUR
12	UKR2
13	HUN2
14	ROU2
15	FRA2
16	BUL2
17	ESP2
18	LTU
19	ITA2
20	GBR
21	SUI

#	IW
1	HUN1
2	FIN1
3	BLR1
4	GBR1
5	ITA1
6	ROU1
7	CZE1
8	ESP1
9	AUT1
10	UKR1
11	POR1
12	RUS1
13	BUL1
14	BUL1 UKR2
15	CZE2
16	ISR
17	ESP2
18	BLR2
19	AUT2
20	BUL2
21	HUN2
22	GBR2
23	GRE
24	GER
25	POR2
26	FRA
27	LTU
28	ITA2
29	RUS2
30	FIN2
31	SUI
32	ROU2

33 SVK

#	MP
1	RUS1
2	ESP1
3	ITA1
4	ROU1
5	RUS2
6	ROU2
7	BUL
8	POR
9	UKR
10	AZE
11	ITA2
12	ESP2
13	GER
14	HUN

#	TR
	0=04
1	GER1
2	FRA1
3	CZE1
4	UKR1
5	RUS1
6	ROU1
7	RUS2
8	BUL
9	BLR
10	ROU2
11	UKR2
12	LTU
13	FIN
14	HUN
15	FRA2
16	CZE2
17	AZE
18	GER2
19	ITA
20	POR
21	ESP

#	GR
1	ITA1
2	RUS1
3	GER1
4	ESP
5	BUL
6	AZE
7	ITA2
8	CZE
9	RUS2
10	POR
11	ROU
12	GER2
13	FRA
14	FIN
15	HUN
16	UKR

#	AD
1	RUS1
2	UKR
3	HUN
4	RUS2
5	AZE
6	ITA
7	FIN
8	ROU

#	AS
1	HUN1
2	RUS1
3	RUS2
4	ESP
5	ITA
6	UKR
	HUN2



10th AEROBIC GYMNASTICS EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIPS

JUNIORS (15 - 17)

Sunday, September 24th, 2017

FINALS DRAW – Cesenatico (ITA), 3rd July, 2017

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order IM
1	1
2	4
3	3
4	2
5	6
6	8
7	5
8	7

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order IW
1	3
2	1
3	2
4	4
5	8
6	7
7	6
8	5

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order MP
1	7
2	4
3	8
4	3
5	2
6	1
7	5
8	6

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order TR
1	1
2	5
3	4
4	8
5	7
6	2
7	6
8	3

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order GR
1	7
2	1
3	8
4	5
5	2
6	3
7	6
8	4

10th AEROBIC GYMNASTICS EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIPS SENIORS

Sunday, September 24th, 2017

FINALS DRAW - Cesenatico (ITA), 3rd July, 2017

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order IM
1	2
2	3
3	1
4	5
5	7
6	8
7	6
8	4

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order IW
1	4
2	1
3	7
4	5
5	3
6	6
7	8
8	2

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order MP
1	7
2	6
3	3
4	1
5	4
6	5
7	8
8	2

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order TR
1	1
2	4
3	6
4	3
5	7
6	2
7	8
8	5

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order GR
1	7
2	3
3	6
4	1
5	5
6	8
7	2
8	4

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order AD
1	5
2	2
3	3
4	1
5	6
6	4

Qualification Ranking	Final Starting Order AS
1	5
2	2
3	3
4	1
5	6
6	4



APPENDIX C – Music Release

(Distribution to all participating nations)
Please, describe the music you will use for the
Nation:Competitor(s):
Music Length:minsec.
Music title:
Artist:
Recording company:
Regarding MUSIC COPYRIGHT, I understand that I am personally responsible for the selection of my music and for any copyright implications. I also understand that the UEG cannot guarantee that my music CD, as I have prepared, will be broadcast. By signing this document, I agree that the UEG reserves the right to broadcast my music, my performance, and appearance in any program or other broadcast related to the championship without any type of payment or compensation to me, of any kind. Nor does the UEG require my permission to broadcast or utilize my image in any such program or related promotion. I understand that if I falsify this document in anyway or fail to fill it out in its entirety, I risk being either penalized or disqualified.
I have carefully read, understand, and hereby agree to comply with the above:
Date: Signature:
JUNIOR □ Individual Woman □ Individual Man □ Mixed Pair □ Trio □ Group
SENIOR □ Individual Woman □ Individual Man □ Mixed Pair □ Trio □ Group □ Aerobic Dance □ Aerobic Step

APPENDIX D

UNION EUROPEENNE DE GYMNASTIQUE



INQUIRY

Event:	AER European Championship 2017
Place:	Ancona / ITA
I undersigned	
Head of Dele	gation of the NF
·	
	If hereby to pay the amounts stipulated in the regulations for the inquiries submitted as of our Federation during the competitions of the 2017 European Championships.
The coaches	authorized to submit inquiries are:
SENIORS	
1	
2	
3	
JUNIORS	
1	
2	
3	
Date:	Signature:

To return to the LOC at the Orientation Meeting